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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

CENTER FOR BIOLOGICAL )
DIVERSITY, and TURTLE ISLAND ) No.
RESTORATION NETWORK, )

)
Plaintiffs, ) COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY

) JUDGMENT AND INJUNCTIVE
v. ) RELIEF

)
NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES )
SERVICE, )

)
Defendant. )

                                                                     )

I.  INTRODUCTION

1. This is an action for declaratory judgment and injunctive relief.  Plaintiffs challenge the failure of

Defendant National Marine Fisheries Service (“NMFS”) to “consult” as required by Section 7(a)(2) of the

Endangered Species Act (“ESA”), 16 U.S.C. § 1536(a)(2), on the effects of federally permitted “longline” fishing

by vessels based in California on federally-protected threatened and endangered species.  Plaintiffs also seek to
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halt the “take” of threatened and endangered species by this fishery in violation of Section 9 of the ESA, 16 U.S.C.

§ 1538(a)(1)(B) and (C).

2. This action arises under and alleges violations of the ESA, 16 U.S.C. § 1531 et seq., and the

Administrative Procedure Act (“APA”), 5 U.S.C. § 551 et seq.

3. Through this litigation, Plaintiffs seek to close a regulatory loophole which currently allows the

California-based longline fishery to operate independent of any environmental review.  Each boat participating in

this fishery operates pursuant to a permit issued by NMFS under the High Seas Fishing Compliance Act of 1995

(“HSFCA”), 16 U.S.C. § 5501 et seq..  This fishery is harming protected species such as sea turtles, marine

mammals and seabirds.  Most significantly, the fishery is killing critically endangered leatherback sea turtles.

Nevertheless, NMFS has never reviewed the fishery’s impacts on federally threatened and endangered species as

required by Section 7 of the ESA.  Additionally, NMFS has not obtained any authorization for the “take” of

leatherback sea turtles and other ESA-listed species that is occurring in this fishery in violation of Section 9 of the

ESA.

4. For NMFS’ violations of the ESA, Plaintiffs seek an order compelling NMFS to consult on the

effects of the California-based longline fishery on threatened and endangered species.  Plaintiffs further seek an

order requiring NMFS to suspend or modify permits issued to participants in the California-based longline fishery

so as to prevent any and all “take” of threatened and endangered species until NMFS complies with the

consultation requirements of Section 7 of the ESA and receives the required authorization to “take” these species.

Such relief is necessary to prevent illegal agency action and forestall irreparable injury to protected species and

Plaintiffs’ interests.

II.  JURISDICTION AND VENUE

5. This court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 (federal question), 2201

(declaratory relief), and 2202 (injunctive relief), and 16 U.S.C. §§ 1540(c) and (g) (action arising under the ESA

and citizen suit provision).  As required by the ESA, 16 U.S.C. § 1540(g), Plaintiffs provided written notice to

NMFS and the Secretaries of Interior and Commerce of the violations alleged in the complaint more than 60 days

ago.  NMFS has not remedied the alleged violations.  An actual controversy exists between the parties within the

meaning of 28 U.S.C. § 2201.

6. Venue is properly vested in this Court pursuant to 16 U.S.C. § 1540 (g)(3)(A)and 28 U.S.C. §
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1391(e) because Plaintiffs reside in this district and no real property is involved in this action.

7. Pursuant to Civil Local Rule 3-2(c), the appropriate intradistrict assignment of this case is to either

the San Francisco Division or the Oakland Division.

III.  PARTIES

8. Plaintiff, CENTER FOR BIOLOGICAL DIVERSITY, (“The Center”) is a non-profit corporation

dedicated to the preservation, protection and restoration of biodiversity, native species, ecosystems, and public

lands.  The Center has over 6,000 members, many of whom reside in California.  The Center maintains offices in

Berkeley, California, Phoenix and Tucson, Arizona, and Silver City, New Mexico.  The Center’s members and

staff regularly use waters of the Pacific Ocean off the coast of California for observation, research, aesthetic

enjoyment, and other recreational, scientific and educational activities.  The Center’s members and staff have

researched, studied, observed and sought protection for many federally-listed threatened and endangered species

that inhabit the Pacific, including the species at issue in this suit.   The Center’s members and staff have visited and

observed, or attempted to visit and observe, each of the species at issue in this suit in the waters off California or

elsewhere in the Pacific.  The Center’s members and staff intend to continue to visit and observe, or attempt to do

so, these species in the future.  The Center’s members and staff derive scientific, recreational, conservation, and

aesthetic benefits from these rare species’ existence in the wild.  The Center brings this action on behalf of itself and

its adversely affected members.

9. Plaintiff TURTLE ISLAND RESTORATION NETWORK (“TIRN”) is a non-profit corporation

organized under the laws of the State of California with its principal place of business in Marin County, California.

TIRN has approximately 1000 members in California and throughout the world, each of whom shares a

commitment to the study, protection, enhancement, conservation, and preservation of the world’s marine

ecosystems and the wildlife that inhabit the oceans.  The largest percentage of TIRN members and staff are

residents of the state of California, and hundreds more have vacationed there and plan to again in the future.  Many,

if not most, spend time in the Pacific in a number of wildlife-viewing activities such as swimming, snorkeling,

kayaking, scuba, whale watching, and sport-fishing.  The Sea Turtle Restoration Project, established in 1989,

operates under the fiscal sponsorship of TIRN and is dedicated to the protection and restoration of endangered

and threatened species of sea turtles.  The staff and members of TIRN and the Sea Turtle Restoration Project

include wildlife biologists who are engaged in the study, protection, enhancement, conservation and preservation
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of endangered and threatened marine species, as well as professional wildlife photographers whose livelihood

depends in part on their continued ability to photograph sea turtles, whales, dolphins and other marine species.

TIRN brings this action on behalf of itself and its adversely affected members.

10. Plaintiffs’ members and staff rely on NMFS to comply with the ESA, especially the Section 7

consultation and Section 9 take prohibitions, which assure that federal agencies incorporate concerns for threatened

and endangered species into agency actions, such as the issuance of permits.  In this regard, Plaintiffs’ members

and staff derive scientific, recreational, health, conservation, spiritual, and aesthetic benefits from the preservation

and protection of threatened and endangered species under the ESA.   Plaintiffs’ members and staff have been, and

are now, adversely affected and injured by NMFS’ refusal to comply with the ESA.  Plaintiffs’ members and staff

will continue to be adversely affected and injured unless relief is granted.

11.  Plaintiffs’ members and staff have also suffered procedural and informational harms connected to

their substantive conservation, recreational, scientific and aesthetic interests from NMFS’s failure to complete

consultation as mandated by Section 7 of the ESA.  Plaintiffs’ members and staff rely on the consultation process

to protect threatened and endangered species from injuries inflicted by activities approved by NMFS.  The

consultation process provides agency decision-makers,  Plaintiffs, and the public with essential information about

the effects of actions approved by NMFS on threatened and endangered species.  NMFS’s failure to carry out

this process deprives Plaintiffs of this information and therefore additionally harms Plaintiffs’ interests.  Plaintiffs have

no adequate remedy at law.

12. Defendant NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE (“NMFS”) is an agency of the

Department of Commerce and the government of the United States.  NMFS is charged with permitting fishing off

the coast of California and on the high seas.  It has legal responsibility for ensuring that its actions, including issuance

of the permits at issue, comply with the procedural and substantive requirements of the ESA.  NMFS is also

charged with administering and enforcing the ESA with regards to most marine species.

IV.  LEGAL BACKGROUND

A.  The Endangered Species Act

13. The Endangered Species Act, 16 U.S.C. §§ 1531-1544, (“ESA”) was enacted, in part, to provide

a “means whereby the ecosystems upon which endangered species and threatened species depend may be
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conserved...[and] a program for the conservation of such endangered species and threatened species...” 16 U.S.C.

§ 1531(b).

14. The ESA vests primary responsibility for administering and enforcing the statute with the Secretaries

of Commence and Interior.  The Secretaries of Commerce and Interior have delegated this responsibility to the

National Marine Fisheries Service (“NMFS”) and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (“FWS”) respectively.  50

C.F.R. §402.01(b).  NMFS has primary responsibility for administering the ESA with regards to most marine

species, including sea turtles and most marine mammals, while FWS has responsibility for terrestrial species, as well

as some marine mammals, and all seabirds.

15. In order to fulfill the substantive purposes of the ESA, Federal agencies are required to engage in

consultation with NMFS or FWS to “insure that any action authorized, funded, or carried out by such agency...is

not likely to jeopardize the continued existence of any endangered species or threatened species or result in the

adverse modification of habitat of such species... determined...to be critical...” 16 U.S.C. § 1536(a)(2) (Section

7 consultation).

16. Section 7 consultation is required for “any action [that] may affect listed species or critical habitat.”

50 C.F.R. § 402.14.  Agency “action” is defined in the ESA’s implementing regulations to include “(c) the granting

of licenses, contracts, leases, easements, rights-of-way, permits, or grants-in-aid; or (d) actions directly or indirectly

causing modifications to the land, water, or air.”  50 C.F.R. § 402.02.

17. Where NMFS is also the acting agency (as in this case), and its actions affect species under its own

jurisdiction, NMFS must undertake internal consultation (i.e. one branch of the agency consults with another) to

comply with this requirement.  When NMFS is the acting agency,  and its actions affect species under FWS’s

jurisdiction, NMFS must undertake consultation with FWS.

18. At the completion of consultation NMFS or FWS issues a Biological Opinion (“BO”) that

determines if the agency action is likely to jeopardize the species.  If so, the opinion may specify reasonable and

prudent alternatives that will avoid jeopardy and allow the agency to proceed with the action.  16 U.S.C. §

1536(b).  NMFS or FWS may also “suggest modifications” to the action during the course of consultation to “avoid

the likelihood of adverse effects” to the listed species even when not necessary to avoid jeopardy.  50 C.F.R. §

402.13.  

19. An agency’s duty to avoid jeopardy is continuing, and “where discretionary Federal involvement
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or control over the action has been retained or is authorized by law,” the agency must in certain circumstances

reinitiate formal consultation.  50 C.F.R. § 402.16.

20. Section 7(d) of the ESA provides that once a federal agency initiates consultation on an action

under Section 7(a)(2), it “shall not make any irreversible or irretrievable commitment of resources with respect to

the agency action which has the effect of foreclosing the formulation or implementation of any reasonable and

prudent alternative measures which would not violate” Section 7(a)(2).  16 U.S.C. § 1536(d).  The purpose of

Section 7(d) is to maintain the environmental status quo pending completion of interagency or internal agency

consultation.

21. Section 9 of the ESA and its implementing regulations prohibit any person from “taking” a

threatened or endangered species.  16 U.S.C. § 1538(a)(1); 50 C.F.R. § 17.31; 50 C.F.R. § 227.11; 50 C.F.R.

§ 227.12; 50 C.F.R. §227.21; 50 C.F.R. § 227.71.  A “person” includes private parties as well as local, state,

and federal agencies.  16 U.S.C. § 1532(13).  “Take” is defined broadly under the ESA to include harming,

harassing, trapping, capturing, wounding, or killing a protected species either directly or by degrading its habitat

sufficiently to impair essential behavior patterns.  16 U.S.C. § 1532(19).  The ESA not only bans the acts of parties

directly causing a take, but also bans the acts of third parties whose acts bring about the taking. 

22. There are two exceptions to Section 9's take prohibitions.  First, Section 10 of the ESA permits

a non-federal entity to “take” listed species incidental to an otherwise lawful activity only after obtaining an

Incidental Take Permit.  16 U.S.C. § 1539. 

23. Second, a federal agency may take listed species only in accordance with an Incidental Take

Statement.  Pursuant to Section 7(b)(4) of the ESA, a biological opinion which concludes that the agency action

will not jeopardize a listed species must include an Incidental Take Statement which specifies the impact of any

incidental taking, provides reasonable and prudent measures necessary to minimize impacts, and sets forth terms

and conditions that must be followed.  16 U.S.C. § 1536(b)(4).  If the terms and conditions of the Incidental Take

Statement are followed, the federal agency and any permittee are exempted from Section 9's take prohibitions.

16 U.S.C. § 1536(o)(2).

B.  High Seas Fishing Compliance Act

24. The High Seas Fishing Compliance Act of 1995 (“HSFCA”) 16 U.S.C. §5501 et seq. was passed

“to implement the Agreement to Promote Compliance with International Conservation and Management Measures
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by Fishing Vessels on the High Seas, adopted by the Conference of the Food and Agriculture Organization of the

United Nations on November 24, 1993,” and to “establish a system of permitting, reporting, and regulation for

vessels of the United States fishing on the high seas.” 16 U.S.C. §5501.

25. To this end, the HSFCA prohibits U.S. flagged vessels from fishing in the high seas (the area

beyond the 200 mile Exclusive Economic Zone), unless those vessels are acting pursuant to a permit issued by

NMFS.  16 U.S.C. §5503(a).

26. The HSFCA requires NMFS to “establish such conditions and restrictions on each permit issued....

as are necessary and appropriate to carry out the obligations of the United States under the Agreement.”  16

U.S.C. §5503(d).

27. The Agreement requires member states to regulate high seas fishing by their nationals so as to be

consistent with international conservation and management measures.  The “international conservation and

management measures” are defined as “measures to conserve or manage one or more species of living marine

resources that are adopted and applied in accordance with the relevant rules of international law, as reflected in the

1982 United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea, and that are recognized by the United States.”  16 U.S.C.

§5502(5).

28. In September 2000, the U.S. Senate ratified the Inter-American Convention for the Protection and

Conservation of Sea Turtles.  The Convention is an international treaty designed to promote “the protection,

conservation and recovery of sea turtle populations and of the habitats on which they depend.”  The Convention

requires that “[e]ach Party shall take appropriate and necessary measures, in accordance with international law and

on the basis of the best available scientific evidence, for the protection, conservation and recovery of sea turtle

populations and their habitats.”  Such measure shall include the “reduction, to the greatest extent practicable, of the

incidental capture, retention, harm or mortality of sea turtles in the course of fishing activities, through the

appropriate regulation of such activities.”

C.  Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Act

29. The Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Act (“Magnuson Act”), 16 U.S.C.

§ 1801 et seq., regulates fishing by U.S. vessels, as well as fishing by foreign vessels fishing within the U.S.

Exclusive Economic Zone (“EEZ”).  The Magnuson Act accomplishes this by the creation of Regional Fishery

Management Councils which craft Fishery Management Plans (“FMPs”).  Each FMP must be approved by NMFS
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before it becomes operational.  16 U.S.C. § 1852(h)(1).  In the absence of an approved FMP, the management

of a fishery remains the responsibility of the state.  

V.  FACTUAL BACKGROUND

A.  Threatened and Endangered Species of the Pacific

30. The leatherback sea turtle (Dermochelys coriacea) is the largest of the sea turtles, weighing

between 700 and 2,000 pounds as an adult, and ranging from 4 to 8 feet in length.  While other sea turtles have

hard shells, the leatherback has a rubbery shell.  The species feeds primarily on jellyfish, and is capable of diving

to depths greater than 3,000 feet.  In the eastern Pacific the leatherback sea turtle nests along beaches in Mexico

and Costa Rica.  The species also nests in the western Pacific in New Guinea, Indonesia, Malaysia, the Solomon

Islands, and Australia.  The species is in rapid decline throughout its range and considered to be on the verge of

extinction in the Pacific.  A primary threat to the species is mortality from longline fishing.  The leatherback sea turtle

is listed as endangered throughout its range.

31. The loggerhead sea turtle (Caretta caretta) is reddish brown to yellow in color with a large head.

Adult loggerheads weigh between 150 and 400 pounds and are 2.5 to 3.5 feet long.  The loggerhead feeds

primarily on mollusks and crustaceans.  All loggerhead turtles in the Pacific breed in the western Pacific.

Loggerheads off the West Coast of the U.S. are thought to originate from Japan.  The primary threats to the species

are fisheries related mortality and destruction of its nesting grounds.  The loggerhead sea turtle is listed as threatened

throughout its range.

32. The olive ridley sea turtle (Lepidochelys olivacea) is one of the smallest of the sea turtles, being

larger only than the hawksbill sea turtle.  The olive ridley sea turtle nests in the Indian Ocean along the coast of India

and in the eastern Pacific along the coasts of Mexico and Central America.  It generally feeds on mollusks and

crustaceans.  The primary threats to the species are mortality from fishing and overharvest of nesting females and

their eggs.  The Mexican nesting population is listed as endangered while the species is listed as threatened

throughout the rest of its range.

33. The green sea turtle (Chelonia mydas) is generally regarded as comprising two races, the eastern

Pacific “black turtle” and the nominate green turtle throughout the central and western Pacific.  The species nests

in Mexico, Central America, the Galapagos, Hawaii, and various locations in the South Pacific.  While most green

turtles have an herbaceous diet of sea grass and algae, those found along the east Pacific also eat mollusks and
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jellyfish.  The species is threatened due to harvest of eggs and nesting females as well as fisheries bycatch.  It is

listed as threatened except for the population breeding on the Pacific coast of Mexico which is listed as endangered.

34. All sea turtles species that are within the range of the California-based longline fishery are listed as

either threatened or endangered under the ESA.

35. The Steller’s sea lion (Eumetopias jubatus) is the largest sea lion in the world.  An adult male

Stellar sea lion can weigh nearly 2,500 pounds and measure nearly 11 feet in length.  The Stellar sea lion population

has been segmented by NMFS for management purposes into Eastern and Western populations or stocks.  The

Western Stellar sea lion population segment breeds in the Gulf of Alaska and the Aleutian Islands and is listed as

endangered.  The Eastern Stellar sea lion population breeds in Southeast Alaska to the Channel Islands of California

and is listed as threatened.  A 50 percent decline in the number of Stellar sea lions off California occurred between

1950 and 1980.  The species is threatened by climate change and both competition with, and direct mortality from,

various fisheries.

36. The Guadalupe fur seal (Arctocephalus townsendi) may reach as much as 6 feet long and weigh

300 pounds.  Once hunted nearly to extinction for their fur, today the Guadalupe fur seal numbers in the low

thousands.  The species breeds on islands off Baja California as well as on San Miguel Island in California.  The

species is currently threatened by incidental capture in driftnet and longline fishing gear.  Guadalupe fur seals are

listed as endangered throughout their range.

37. The short-tailed albatross (Phoebastria albatrus) is the largest seabird of the North Pacific with

a wingspan of more than nine feet.  The species currently breeds on only a handful of islands in Japan.  Once

numbering in the millions, the species was brought to near extinction by feather hunters at the turn of the century.

The species now numbers approximately 1300 individuals.  The species ranges across the North Pacific, reaching

Hawaii, California, and Alaska.  The primary threat to the species today is drowning as a result of entanglement

in longline fishing gear.  It is listed as endangered throughout its range.

38. In addition to the above species, several other ESA listed species occur in the North Pacific in the

range of the California-based longline fishery.  These include the sperm whale, blue whale, fin whale, northern right

whale, and the Hawaiian monk seal. 

B.  The California-Based Longline Fishery

39. The swordfish (Xiphias gladius) is one of the more popular and profitable fish harvested
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worldwide.  The U.S. consumes approximately twenty percent of the world swordfish harvest.  The vast majority

of swordfish is harvested by boats using longline fishing gear.  Much of the remainder is caught using driftnets.

Vessels targeting swordfish also often fish for various tunas and sharks.

40. Longline fishing involves the use of a line that stretches several miles from a vessel and is anchored

to appropriate depths (the “longline”).  Attached to the longline are additional lines to which are attached weights

and baited hooks.  A single longline fishing vessel may deploy several thousand hooks at one time.  

41. In addition to the target species, longline gear catches non-target and undersized fish, sharks, sea

turtles, marine mammals, and seabirds.  Sea turtles, marine mammals, and seabirds all get caught on the baited

hooks of longlines, and being air breathers, subsequently drown.

42. Until recently, most longline fishing for swordfish by U.S. vessels was based out of Hawaii.  From

1994 through 1998 the number of longline vessels based in California ranged from 2 to 29.

43. The Hawaiian longline fishery is managed under the federal Fishery Management Plan for Pelagic

Fisheries in the Western Pacific Region.  Vessels that are under the Hawaii Fishery Management Plan (“FMP”) fish

both within the U.S. EEZ as well as in the high seas.  As long as they make their landings (unloading of fish) in

Hawaii these vessels are subject to the rules and regulations of the FMP.  However, if these same vessels make

their landings in California, they are not subject to the FMP.

44. In November of 1999, the Court in Center for Marine Conservation, et al., v. National Marine

Fisheries Service, et al., (Civ. No. 99-00152 DAE)(D. Hawaii) issued an injunction restricting longline fishing under

the Hawaii FMP throughout much of the North Pacific.  The injunction was designed to reduce sea turtle mortality.

45. Subsequent to this injunction, numerous boats from Hawaii have relocated to California.  Since

December 1999, at least 40 longline boats originating in Hawaii have unloaded their catch in California ports.  The

quantity of swordfish landed at San Pedro, California increased from 1.5 million pounds in 1999 to 2.6 million

pounds in 2000.

46. Currently, longline fishing based in California is not regulated under a federal FMP.  While such an

FMP is under development, California-based longline fishing currently is regulated only by the state.  California does

not allow longline fishing for swordfish within the EEZ.  California does, however, allow swordfish caught on the

high seas beyond the 200 mile EEZ to be landed in the state.

47. Longline fishing vessels operating out of California do not have observers on board to record sea
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turtles, seabirds, and marine mammals accidentally caught.  The vessel operators are required, however, to report

such bycatch.

48. From August 1995 through 1999, California-based longline fishing vessels have self-reported

numerous interaction with sea turtles.  Thirty-five leatherback sea turtles were reported hooked during this period.

Twenty-one loggerhead sea turtles were reported hooked.  Nineteen olive ridley sea turtles and twelve green sea

turtles were also reported hooked.

49. Many of the turtles hooked were reported released alive.  Many turtles released alive, however,

do not survive.

50. Self-reports of bycatch are generally considered to by under representative of the actual amount

of bycatch occurring.  The self-reported take of sea turtles represents the minimum number of turtles taken during

this period. 

51. The self-reports of bycatch from this period also report the take of over one hundred albatross.

Some of these were likely to be the endangered short-tailed albatross.

52. The self-reports of bycatch from this period also report the take of a Hawaiian monk seal and an

unidentified sea lion.

53. Longline fishing vessels operating out of or making landings in California interact with ESA listed

species.  Some of these vessels have taken listed species.  Fishing by California-based longline fishing vessels may

affect listed species and is likely to adversely affect some of those species.

54. Each longline fishing vessel operating out of or making landings in California is required to have a

permit issued by NMFS under the High Seas Fishing Compliance Act of 1995 (“HSFCA”).  Without such a

permit, a U.S. vessel could not lawfully fish for swordfish in the high seas off California.  

55. NMFS’s issuance of HSFCA permits are agency actions as defined by the ESA and its

implementing regulations.

56. Because fishing by U.S. vessels in the high seas cannot take place but for NMFS’s issuance of

HSFCA permits, NMFS’s actions may affect listed species and are likely to adversely affect some of those species.

57. NMFS has never consulted under Section 7 of the ESA on the issuance of HSFCA permits to any

longline fishing vessels operating out of or making landings in California.

58. NMFS’s issuance of HSFCA permits directly authorizes fishing activities that result in the take
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endangered or threatened species.  Neither NMFS nor the operators of the longline fishing vessels operating out

of or making landings in California has applied for or received any authorization for such take.

59. In 1996, NMFS carried out an internal informal consultation on the Interim Final Rule Implementing

a Permitting System for U.S. Vessels Fishing on the High Seas.  NMFS concluded that its interim regulations would

not likely affect listed species.  The 1996 consultation only addressed the interim regulations.  It did not address

the issuance of permits under HSFCA and the subsequent fishing activity.  Nor did it address species managed by

FWS, such as the short-tailed albatross.  Moreover, the 1996 informal consultation document called for reinitiation

of consultation within 18 months to more fully address the impacts of HSFCA permitted fishing activity on listed

species.  No such reinitiation of consultation has occurred. 

VI.  CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

First Claim for Relief

(Violation of ESA Consultation Requirements)

60. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference each and every allegation set forth in all paragraphs

of this Complaint.

61. NMFS is violating Section 7(a)(2) of the ESA and its implementing regulations by failing to ensure

through consultation that the issuance of fishing permits under the HSFCA to longline fishing vessels operating out

of or making landings in California will not jeopardize the continued existence of threatened and endangered

species, including leatherback, loggerhead, olive ridley, and green sea turtles, Steller’s sea lions, Guadalupe fur

seals, short-tailed albatross, and other listed species.  16 U.S.C. § 1536(a)(2); 50 C.F.R. Part 402.  This violation

is subject to judicial review under 16 U.S.C. § 1540(g). 

62. NMFS’s failure to consult on the issuance of fishing permits under the HSFCA to longline fishing

vessels operating out of or making landings in California is arbitrary, capricious, and not in accordance with

procedures required by law in violation of the APA.  5 U.S.C. § 706.  

Second Claim for Relief

(Violation of ESA Take Prohibition)

63. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference each and every allegation set forth in all paragraphs

of this Complaint.

64. NMFS is violating Section 9 of the ESA by issuing fishing permits under the HSFCA to longline
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fishing vessels operating out of or making landings in California that will result in take of threatened and endangered

species including leatherback, loggerhead, olive ridley, and green sea turtles, and other listed species.  16 U.S.C.

§ 1538(a)(1); 50 C.F.R. § 17.31; 50 C.F.R. § 227.11; 50 C.F.R. § 227.12; 50 C.F.R. §227.21; 50 C.F.R. §

227.71.  This violation is subject to judicial review under 16 U.S.C. § 1540(g). 

Third Claim for Relief

(Violation of ESA Consultation Requirements)

65. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference each and every allegation set forth in all paragraphs

of this Complaint.

66. NMFS is violating Section 7(a)(2) of the ESA and its implementing regulations by failing to ensure

through consultation or reinitiation of consultation that the Interim Final Rule Implementing a Permitting System for

U.S. Vessels Fishing on the High Seas and subsequent regulations and actions implementing the HSFCA will not

jeopardize the continued existence of threatened and endangered species, including leatherback, loggerhead, olive

ridley, and green sea turtles, Steller’s sea lions, Guadalupe fur seals, short-tailed albatross, and other listed species.

16 U.S.C. § 1536(a)(2); 50 C.F.R. Part 402.  This violation is subject to judicial review under 16 U.S.C. §

1540(g). 

67. NMFS’s failure to consult or reconsult on the HSFCA regulations is arbitrary, capricious, and not

in accordance with procedures required by law in violation of the APA.  5 U.S.C. § 706.  

VII.  PRAYER FOR RELIEF

68. WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully request that this Court enter judgment providing the following

relief:

(1) A declaratory judgment that NMFS is violating Section 7(a)(2) of the ESA and its

implementing regulations by failing to ensure through consultation that the issuance of fishing permits under the

HSFCA to longline fishing vessels operating out of or making landings in California will not jeopardize the continued

existence of threatened and endangered species, including leatherback, loggerhead, olive ridley, and green sea

turtles, Steller’s sea lions, Guadalupe fur seals, short-tailed albatross, and other listed species.

(2) A declaratory judgment that NMFS is violating Section 9 of the ESA by issuing fishing

permits under the HSFCA to longline fishing vessels operating out of or making landings in California that have and
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will result in take of threatened and endangered species including leatherback, loggerhead, olive ridley, and green

sea turtles, and other ESA listed species.

(3) A declaratory judgment that NMFS is violating Section 7(a)(2) of the ESA and its

implementing regulations by failing to ensure through consultation or reinitiation of consultation that the Interim Final

Rule Implementing a Permitting System for U.S. Vessels Fishing on the High Seas and subsequent regulations

implementing the HSFCA will not jeopardize the continued existence of threatened and endangered species,

including leatherback, loggerhead, olive ridley, and green sea turtles, Steller’s sea lions, Guadalupe fur seals, short-

tailed albatross, and other listed species.

(4) An order requiring NMFS to initiate consultation on the impacts of the issuance of fishing

permits under the HSFCA to longline fishing vessels operating out of or making landings in California on threatened

and endangered species.

(5) An order requiring NMFS to suspend, revoke, or amend all fishing permits issued pursuant

to the HSFCA to longline fishing vessels operating out of or making landings in California so as to eliminate all

likelihood of take occurring to any threatened or endangered species as a result of any fishing activity occurring

pursuant to such permits.  Such order shall remain in effect until NMFS completes consultation on the effects of

issuance of fishing permits under the HSFCA to longline fishing boats operating out of or making landings in

California and obtains authorization for any and all take of ESA listed species occurring as a result of such fishing.

(6) An order requiring NMFS to initiate or reinitiate consultation to ensure that the Interim Final

Rule Implementing a Permitting System for U.S. Vessels Fishing on the High Seas and subsequent regulations and

actions implementing the HSFCA will not jeopardize the continued existence of threatened and endangered species,

including leatherback, loggerhead, olive ridley, and green sea turtles, Steller’s sea lions, Guadalupe fur seals, short-

tailed albatross, and other listed species.

(7) An order awarding Plaintiffs their costs of litigation, including reasonable attorneys’ fees;

and

(8) Provide such other relief as the Court deems just and proper.

Dated:  May 2, 2001 Respectfully submitted,
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